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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To,
THE MEMBERS OF KUNAL STRUCTURE (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED 

Report on the audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements 

Opinion

We have audited the Standalone Ind AS financial statements of KUNAL STRUCTURE (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED 

("the Company") (CIN; U45200GJ2006PTC048080), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 3 r*  March 2021, the 

Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and 

Statement of Cash flow/s for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 

the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 

financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ('The Act') in the manner so 

required and give a true and fair view/ in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under 

section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as amended and other 

accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, 

and Loss, Changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of 

the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are 

independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone Ind 

AS financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have 

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We 

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note no. 40 (a) (i) & (ii) to the standalone financial statements, relating to ongoing claim 

proceedings and legal proceedings.

We draw attention to note no. 43 to the Standalone Ind AS Financial statements, relating to the revenue 

recognized and trade receivables which includes claims awarded in favor of the company on account of 

arbitration proceedings.
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We draw attention to Note 44 of the accompanying financial results, as regards the management's evaluation of 

COVID-19 impact on the operations and assets of the Company.

Our opinion in respect of above matter is not modified.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information. The other information 

comprises the information included in the report of Board of Directors and it committees, but does not include 

the Standalone Ind AS financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not 

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whetherthe other information 

is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise 

appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of other 

information, we are required the report the fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 

2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true 

and fair view of the financial position, financial performance of the Company in accordance with the accounting 

principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions 

of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 

irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that 

are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 

controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 

relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Ind AS financial statement that give a true and 

fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's 

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 

going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities fo, tlie Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

a “ 7 about  whether the Standalone Ind AS financial statements as

In c lu ls  '  due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but Is not a guarantee that an audit

conducted ,n accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, ivllsstatements can

b exp^ed  t o t t e Z t h " '
statements "><l AS financial

“ s, we exercise professional Judgment and maintain professional
skepticism  throughout the audit. W e also:

• Identify and assess the risi<s of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain

audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error as

fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override' of 
internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that

are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also 

responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls

system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we 

conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to 

the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 

opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report 

However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the Standalone Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with tinose cliarged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

w e did not audit the financial Information of three unincorporated joint operations, whose financial Information 

have not been included for the year then ended on March 31, 2021 on account of unava.iabilitv of audited

financial information.

Our opinion is not modified in this respect.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

AS required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 C h e  Order"), Issued by the Central Government 

of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure A 

statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) w e  have sought and obtained all the information and  explanations which to the best of our knowledge 

and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it

appears from o u r examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (Including Other Comprehensive Income), the 

statement of changes In equity and the Cash Flow statement dealt with by this Report are in agreemen

with the books of account.

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian 

Standards ("Ind AS") specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting

Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended time to time.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on B lst

record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2021 from being 

appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
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f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company 

and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B".

g) As being Private Limited Company, the requirement of the other matters to be included in the 

Independent Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as 

amended is not applicable.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 

according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in 

its financial statements- Refer Note 40 (a) to the Standalone Ind AS financial statements. 

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 

which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 

and Protection Fund by the Company.

Date: September 8, 2021 
Place: Ahmedabad

For, Surana Maloo & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 112171W

Per, Vidhan Surana 
Partner
Membership No: 041841 
UDIN: 21041841AAAAIE5929
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Annexure - "A" to the Independent Auditors' Report

Matters specified in paragraphs 3 & 4 of the Companies (Auditor's Report) order, 2016 ("the Order") issued 
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
of Kunal Structure (India) Private Limited for the year ended on 31st March, 2021.

i) a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details 
and situation of fixed assets.

b) The fixed assets have been physically verified during the year by the Management in accordance 

with program of physical verification, which in our opinion, provides for physical verification of all 

fixed assets at reasonable intervals having regard to size of the Company and nature of fixed assets. 

Based on our audit and according to the information and explanations given to us, no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c) According to the information and explanations given by the management, title deeds of all the 

immovable properties are in the name of the company.

ii) Inventories have been physically verified by the Management at regular intervals and discrepancies 

noticed on such verification, if any, have been properly dealt with in the books of account.

ill) The Company has not granted loans, secured or unsecured, tocompanies, firms or other parties covered 

in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act, therefore the further reporting requirement of 

paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable.

iv) The Company has not given loans or made investments or provided guarantees or security, attracting 

the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act. Hence, reporting requirements of paragraph 3(iv) of 
the Order is not applicable.

v) According to the information and explanations given to us the Company has not accepted deposits from 

the public within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act, and the rules framed there under. 

Therefore, the reporting requirements of paragraph 3 (v) of the Order, is not applicable to the Company.

Vi) The Company has maintained the cost records prescribed by the Central Government under section 148(1) 
of the Act.

vii) a) According to the information and explanations given to us and records produced before us, the company 

is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund (PF), Employees' State 

Insurance (ESIC), Professional Tax, income-tax, goods & service tax and any other statutory dues to the 

appropriate authorities though there have been few delays in case of PF, ESIC, Goods and Service Tax(GST)

& Professional Tax. According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts

*/ ___ V/Ŵ 2nd Floor,
Aakashganga Com . 

Paldi,A'bad-7.
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payable in respect of provident fund, income tax, goods and service tax and other material statutory dues 

were in arrears as at IVlarch 31, 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date they became 

payable except those mentioned below:

Nature of Dues Period to wh ich  the  am ount re lates Am ount 

(Rs. in lakhs)

Tax Deducted at Source FV 2007-08 to FV 2013-14 0.26

Tax Deducted at Source FV 2020-21 0 . 0 1

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no material dues of income tax, 

goods & service tax which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any 

dispute, except as provided below: -

Name of 

the

Statute

Nature of 

Dues

Am ount 

Dem anded  

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Am ount under

D ispute

Deposited

Period to which  

the  am ount 

re la tes

Forum  w here  the  

dispute is pending

M PVAT VAT 11.44 - FY 2009-10 Appellate Tribunal

MR VAT Entry Tax 5.49 - FY 2009-10 Appellate Tribunal

M PVAT VAT 1.08 - FY 2010-11 Comm issioner

(Appeals)

M PVAT Entry Tax 0.67 - FY 2010-11 Comm issioner

(Appeals)

M PVAT VAT 1.03 - FY 2013-14 Commissioner

(Appeals)

M PVAT Entry Tax 0.38 FY 2013-14 Comm issioner

(Appeals)

viii) Based on our audit procedure and the information and exp lanations given by the management, we 

are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans to financial institution and 

banks. The Company has not borrowed or raised any money from debenture holders during the year.

ix) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 

instruments). In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us and on 

examination of the balance sheet of the company, the term loans were applied for the purpose for which 

the loans were obtained.

x) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the 

Standalone Ind AS financial statements and as per the information and explanations given by the 

Management, we report that no material fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported 

during the year.

xi) In our opinion, provisions of section 197 of the Act are not applicable to the company being a private limited 

company, therefore the reporting requirement of paragraph 3(xi) of the Order, are not applicable to 

the Company.
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xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a chit fund or a Nidhi/ Mutual benefit fund/ society. Therefore, the 

provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xiii) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 

records of the Company, all the transactions with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 

and 188 of the Act, where applicable and also the details which have been disclosed in the Standalone 

Ind AS Financial Statements are in accordance with the applicable Accounting Standard.

xiv) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or 

partly convertible debentures during the year, therefore the reporting requirement of paragraph 3(xiv) 
of the Order, are not applicable to the Company.

xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 

entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly 

reporting requirement of paragraph 3(xv) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi) According to the information given and as explained to us, the company is not required to be registered 

under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

Date: September 8, 2021 

Place: Ahmedabad

For, Surana Maloo & Co.

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No: 112171W

Per, Vidhan Surana

Partner

Membership No: 041841 

UDIN: 21041841AAAAIE5929
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Annexure 'B'

Annexure to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Standalone Ind AS Financial 

Statements of Kunal Structure (India) Private Limited

Report on the Internal Finandal Controls under Clause (I) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the

Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Kunal Structure (India) 

Private Limited ("the Company") as of March 3 r ‘, 2021 in conjunction v îth our audit of the 

Standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

IVlanagement's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's m anagem ent is responsib le for estab lish ing and m a i n t a i n i n g  internal financial 

controls based on the internal control over f i n a n c i a l  reporting criteria estab lished bythe Company 
c rn s ld tin g  com ponents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Au ito f
Internal F i n a n c i a l  C o n tro ls  over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute o f  Chartered  Accountan s 

of India (ICAl) These responsib ilities include the design, im p lem entation  and m aintenance o 
l a u l t e  i n ^ L l  f lL n c la l controls .hat were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 

efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies,
Issets the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 

accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as require

the Act.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is t o  express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls o v e r  financial 

r e p o Z  based on our audit. We conducted our audit In accordance with -

Audit of internal Financial Controls Oyer Financial Reporting (the -Guidance
on Auditing issued by the ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Ac , to the 

extent applicable to an audit of Internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal 

Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAl. Those Standards and the ™

we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 

about whether adequate Internal financial controls over financial reporting was established 

maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 

internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
of internal finandal controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of m ernal 

financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakriess exists and 

testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on th 

assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment 

of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to

fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 

Standalone Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those 

policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) 

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 

and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of 

management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 

prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's 

assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 

the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 

due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 

internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 

internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 

conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 

system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 

operating effectively as at March 3 r* , 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting 

criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated 

in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
For, Surana Maloo & Co.

Chartered Accountants 

Firm's Registration No.: 112171W

Date: September 8, 2021 

Place; Ahmedabad

Per, Vidhan Surana

Partner

Membership No: 041841 

UDIN: 21041841AAAAIE5929
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Kunal Structure (India) Private Limited 

CIN: U45200GJ2006PTC048080 

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021

The accompanying notes are intergral part of the financial statements 
As per our report of even date attached

For Surana Maloo & Co.

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration Number: 112171W

For and Behalf of the Board of Directors 

Kunal Structure (India) Private Limited

CIN: U45200GJ2006PTC048080

Per, Vidhan Surana
Partner

Membership No.: 041841 

UDIN : 21041841AAAAIE5929

Arvind Domadia 

Managing Director 

DIN: 01608844

Particulars Note
No.

As at 

March 31, 2021

(Amount Rs. in lakhs^

As at 

March 31, 2020

1. ASSETS

1 Non-current assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment

(b) Other Intangible assets 

33 Capital Work in Progress 

30 Financial Assets

(1) Investments

(il) Other Non-current financial assets 

(e) Deferred tax Asset (Net)

(e) Other non-current assets 

Total Non-current Assets

2 Current assets

(a) Inventories

(b) Financial Assets

(i) Trade receivables

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents

(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above

(iv) Other current financial assets

(c) Current tax assets (Net)

(d) Other current assets 

Total Current assets

5

5

5

6

7

8 

9

12,407.4^

232.25

100.6i

49.0£

6,426.22

1,023.92

498.69

 ̂ 12,295,78 

* 274.29 

® 916.40

’ 58.72 

' 8,233.74

975.07
20,738.33 22.754.00

10

11

12

12

13

14

15

12,942.25

12,017.60

211.55
6,657.54

6,308.32

1,734.21

31,117.21

13,353.27

11,318.33

1,140.03
5,997.64

5,220.51

1,752.39

29,820.76
70,988.68 68,602.93

Total Assets
91.727.01 91.356.93

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1 Equity

(a) Equity share capital
(b) Other Equity 
Total Equity

16

17
503.00

27,984.10
503.00

32.256.11
28.487.10 32,759.11

2 Liabilities 

Non-current liabilltres

(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Long term borrowings

(ii) Other non-current financial liabilities
(b) Long-term provisions

(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net)

(d) Other non-current liabilities 

Total Non-current liabilities

18

19
20 

8 

21

10,376.77

2,886.50

65.52

9,593.75

4,067.77

96.69

394.67

546.76
13,328.79 14,699.64

3 Current liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Short term borrovirings

(ii) Trade payables

- Outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises

- Outstanding dues of Others

(iii) Other current financial liabilities
(b) Short term provisions

(c) Other current liabilities

22

23

24

25

26

21,583.15

1,678.97

16,452.58

6,878.07

44.17

3,274.17

17,970.30

38.82

17,415.60

5,880.29

103.51

2.489.661 oiai Lurrent iiaoiiities
49,911.11 43,898.18

1 otai Liaoiiities
63,239.90 58,597.82

T  ̂ 1 C M I J a 1 * 1 H > . »lotal Equity and Liabilities
91,727.00 91,356.93

I Oomadia
Director 

DIN:03566752

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date : 08-09-2021

Place: Ahmedabad 

Date ; 08-09-2021



Kunal S tructu re (India) P rivate  Lim ited  

CIN: U45200GJ2006PTC048080

Profit and Loss Statement for the year ended March 31, 2021

1

Particulars I Note 

----------------------- ------------------------------------------------------------- No.

Revenue

Revenue from Operations 2 7  

Other Income
28

Total Income

For the year ended 

_________March 31, 2021

58,944 .81

1 ,063.86

(Amount Rs. in lakhs) 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2020

86,223 .90

1,929.82
60,008.67 88,153.72

II Expenses

Construction Expenses

Employee Benefits Expense 2  ̂

Finance costs

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 5

Other Expenses ^ 2  

Total Expenses

53,089 .75

4 ,012 .96

4 ,804 .02

2 ,067 .16

2 ,034 .08

69,869.31

5 ,431 .75

4 ,381 .57

2 ,048,48

3 ,089 ,07
66,007.97 _____________________ 84,820.18

III Profit Before Tax
(5,999.30) 3,333.54

IV

V

Tax expense:

Current Tax
42

(Excess) /  Short provision of earlie r periods 4 2  

Deferred Tax ^ 2

Profit/fLossl AftPr Tav nil l\/\

(230 .88)

(1 ,438 .18 )

936,99

(45,48)

(314.14)

(4,330.24) 2,756.17

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or 
loss

1

VI 1

Remeasurements of defined benefit liabillty/(asset)

Income tax related to above items

3tn6r COIDDn^hl^nciv/o in/'nmA 1 1

77.81

(19.58)
(15.61)

3.93
incom e \Nct OT t3X6S)

58.23 (1 1 .6 8 )

VII 1
1 uidi (.umprenensive income tor the Year (V + VI)

(4,272.01) 2,744.49

VIII E

F

V

d

N

B

iarnings per equity share (EPS)

'rofit attributable to equity shareholders

Veighted average number of equity shares outstanding

'uring the year (Refer Note 38)

lominal value of equity share

asic and Diluted Earning per Share (EPS)

(4 ,330 .24 )

50 ,30 ,000

1 0

(86 .09)

2 ,756 .17

50 ,30 ,000

1 0

54.79

The accompanying notes are intergral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached

For Surana M aloo & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 112171W

Per, V idhan Surana

Partner

Membership No,: 041841 

UDIN ; 21041841AAAA IE5929

For and Beha lf of the Board of D irectors 

Kunal Structure (Ind ia) P rivate Lim ited  

CIN: U45200GJ2006PTC048080

Arvind Dom adia

Managing Director 

D IN :01608844

'u n c i

Linal Dom adi

Director 

DIN: 03566752

Place : Ahmedabad 

Date : 08-09-2021
Place : Ahmedabad 

Date : 08-09-2021



Kunal Structure (India) Private Limited 

CIN: U45200GJ2006PTC048080

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2021

Particulars

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Profit before tax 

Adjustment for:

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

(Profit) /  Loss on Sale of Items of Property, Plant and Equipment (net) 
Interest and other borrowing Cost 

Interest income on Fixed deposit 

Provision for /  (write back) of Expected Credit Loss (net)

Fair valuation adjustment on security and other deposits (net)

(Gam) / Loss arising on financial assets measured at FVTPL (net) 
(Profit) /  Loss on Sale of Mutual Fund '

Share of Profit from Joint Venture 

Actuarial Gain / (Loss)

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES

Adjustment For Working Capital Changes:

Changes in Inventories

Changes in Trade Receivables

Changes in Financial Assets and Other Assets

Changes in Financial Liabilities and Other Payables

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 

Direct Taxes paid (Net)

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of Property Plant and Equipment,CWIP and intangible assets 

(including advances for capital expenditure)

Sale of Items of Property Plant and Equipment

(Investment in)/ Proceeds from other equity of jo int ventures

Share of Profit from Joint Venture

Interest income on Fixed deposit

Changes in FDRs other than Cash and Cash Equivalents

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from / (Repayments of) long term borrowings 

Proceeds /  (Repayments) from short term borrowings 

Interest and other borrowing cost

NET CASH GENERATED FROM / (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE/ (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

OPENING BALANCE- CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT 

CLOSING BALANCE- CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

(Amount Rs. in lakhsl

For the year endecJ For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(5,999.31 3 ,333 .54

2 ,067 .1 (’  2 ,048 .48
3 4 .0 ;- 244 .87

4,429 .6S ’ 4 ,164 .00
(474.85') (564 .47 )

30.31 54.36
(5.62 ) 8 .10
(0 .84 ) (0 .77 )
(0 .09 )

(17 .72 ) (112.23)
77.81 (15 ,61)

140 .57 9 ,160 .27

411 .02 (2 ,687 .91 )
(729 .58 ) (1 ,844 .46 )
(973 .29 ) (4 ,965 .48 )
(580.05) 263 .69

(1,731.33) (73.89)
249 .06 (1 ,064 .60 )

(1,482.27) (1,138.49)

(2 ,257 .18 ) (1 ,214 .69 )
910 .15 421 .05
10.59 (48 .28)

17.72 112.23

474 .85 564 .47
206 .64 372 .98

(637.23) 207,76

2 ,007 .86 2 ,846 .32

3 ,612 .85 1 ,397 .85
(4 ,429 .69 ) (4 ,164 .00 )

1,191.02 80.17

(928.48) (850.56)

1,140.03 1,990.59
211.55 1,140.03



Kuna l S tru ctu re  (Ind ia ) P r iv a te  L im ited  

CIIM; U 45200G J2006PTC048080

Cash  F low  S ta tem en t fo r th e  y e a r  en ded  M arch  31, 2021 

Notes to the Cash Flow StatPmont

1. The above Statement of Cash Flow has been

"Statement of Cash Flows",

2. Cash and cash equivalent comprises of:

prepared under the "Indirect Method"
as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) - ;

[Cash and cash equivalents In Standalone Statem ent

B.Direct taxes paid are treated as arising from operating
activities and are not bifurecated between investing and financing activities.

The accompanying notes are intergral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached

ForSurana Maloo & Co.

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration Number: 112171W

/ b V V

Per, Vidhan Surana 

Partner 

Membership No.: 041841 

UDIN : 21041841AAAAIES929

Place : Ahmedabad 

Date : 08-09-2021

For and Behalf of the Board of Directors 

Kunal Structure (India) Private Limited 

CIN: U45200GJ2006PTC048080

Arvind Dornadia"*''

Managing Director 

D IN :01608844

Place : Ahmedabad 

Date : 08-09-2021

( fwnrfT  Domadia

Director 

D IN :03566752



Kunal Structure (India) Private Limited 

CIN: U45200GJ2006PTC048080  

Statement of Chianges in Equity

Particulars

Balance as at A p r i l l , 2019 -----------

Changes in equity share capital during the year 2019-20 

Add: Bonus Shares issued during the year 

Balance as at March 31. 2020

No. o f Shares

50.30.030

50.30.030

(Amount Rs. in lakhs) 

Amount

503.00

CA3 nn
Changes in equity share capital during the year 2020-21

Add: Bonus Shares issued during the year 

Balance as at March 31, 2021
50,30.030

9U.3.UU

503.00

A. Other equity

Particulars

Retained Earnings

Balance as at April 1,2 0 1 9  ^

Profit attributable to owners of tiie Company 

Other comprehensive income arising from Remeasurement of 

defined benefit obligation net of income tax

Balance at the end of the year March 31. 2020

Profit attributable to owners of the Company 

Other comprehensive income arising from Remeasurement of 

defined benefit obligation net of income tax

28,095.72

2,756.17

Other 

Comprehensive 

Income - 

Remeasurement of 

Defined Benefit 

Plans

Reserves and Surplus
(Amount Rs. in lakhs)

Securities Premium

30,851.89

Balance at the end of the year March 31, 2021

(4,330.24)

26,521.65

28.90

(11 .68)

46.13

1,387.00

Total

2,774.00

58.23

104.35

29,511.63

2,756.17

(11 .68 )

61,767.74

2,774.00

(4,330.24)

58.23

57,495.73

The accompanying notes are intergral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached

For Surana Maloo & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 112171W

Per, Vidhan Surana

Partner

Membership No.: 041841 

UDIN : 21041841AAAAIE5929

P lace : Ahmedabad 

Date : 08-09-2021

For and Behalf of the Board of Directors

Kunal Structure (India) Private Limited 

CIN: U45200GJ2006PTC048080

Arvind Domadia

Managing Director 

DIN: 01608844

Place : Ahmedabad 

Date : 08-09-2021

Kunal Oomadia

Director 

D IN :03566752



Notes to Standalone Financial Statements

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Kunal Structure (India) Private Limited ('the Company'), incorporated in 2006 under the provisions of 

Companies Act, 1956, is a company domiciled in India w/ith its registered office situated at Mondeal 

Heights, B Wing, 15th Floor, Near Hotel Novotel, S G Highw/ay, Ahmedabad - 380015. The company is 

engaged in the business of Infrastructure Development and Construction Projects.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

a. Statement of Compliance

Standalone Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance w/ith Indian 

Accounting Standards (Ind AS) in accordance with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 

2015, as amended from time to time, notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the 'Act') and 

other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 
September 3, 2021.

b. Presentation of financial statements

The financial statements (except for Statement of Cash Flow) are prepared and presented in the 

format prescribed in Division II -  Ind AS Schedule III ("Schedule III") to the Companies Act, 2013. The 

Statement of Cash Flow has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 

"Statement of Cash flows".

Current versus Non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current 

classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

• Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

• Held primarily for the purpose of trading

• Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for 

at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

• It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

• It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve 

months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as noncurrent assets and liabilities.



The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets fo , processing and their realization 

cash and cash equrvaients. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle

c. Functional and Presentation Currency

d. Basis of measurement

f l w “ s " " '

(i) Certain financial instruments that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting

period in accordance with Ind AS.
(ii) Defined benefit plans

e. Measurement of fair value

Fair value measurements under Ind AS are categorized as below based on the degree to which the

inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value 
measurement in its entirety:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that 
the company can access at measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included in level 1, that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

• Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the valuation of assets/liabilities

f. Use of estimates and judgements

While preparing this standalone financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates 

and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amount of assets 

liabilities, incomes and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and 

underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the 

reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of 

assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described in the below mentioned notes:

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements



Notes to Standalone Financial Statements

a. Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

of separately identifiable components of the asset,

b. Fair value measurement of financial instruments

of financial instruments,

c. Defined benefit plans

determined using
ac uanal va uat.ons. An actuarial valuation Involves making various assumptions that may differ from

actual developments in .he future^ These Include the determination of the discount rate L tu re  s a Z

l"d  T ' r f  I  T " ' " ' " ' ' i ' " ' “ l ' '=d In the valuation and Its long-term nature

reviewed a t '"  h  ̂ 'fe se  assumptions. All assumptions are
jw e d  at each reporting date. Information about the various estimates and assumptions made in

determining the present value of defined benefit obligations are disclosed in Note 35.

d. Current /  Deferred Tax Expense

Significant management Judgement Is required to determine the amounts of current taxes, deferred

profto toV e th " 'th r r  and the level of future taxableprofits together with future tax planning strategies.

e. Revenue Recognition based on Percentage of Completion

Based on the output perforn,ance method such as survey of work undertaken by qualified professionals, 

percentage of completion for each project Is derived. Accordingly, based on percentage of work 

completed, contract revenue is recognised in the financial statements.

f. Provision for estimated losses on construction contracts

When I. Is probable that total contract costs will exceed contract revenues, the expected loss is required

to be recognized as an expense Immediately. The major component of contract estimate Is budgeted

costs to complete the contract. While estimating the total costs, management makes various

assumptions such as the timeliness of project completion, the estimated costs escalations and 
consumption norms.

g. Recoverability of Claims

The Company has claims in respect of cost over-run arising due to client caused delays, suspension of 

projects, deviation in design and change in scope of w/ork etc., which are at various

€0

O
2nd Floor, 

A akashganfla Com . 

Paldi, A'bad-7.



negotiation/discussion with the clients or under arbitration. The realisability of these claims are 

estimated based on contractual terms, historical experience with similar claims as well as legal opinion 

obtained from internal and external experts, wherever necessary. Changes in facts of the case or the 

legal framework may impact realisability of these claims.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a. Property, Plant and Equipment

• Recognition and Measurement

Property, Plant and Equipment are measured at cost of acquisition or construction less 

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes purchase 

price, non-refundable taxes and duties and all other costs attributable to bringing the asset to its 

working condition for intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing items and 

restoring the site on which it is located. Financing costs relating to borrowing funds attributable 

to acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment are also included, for the period till such asset is 
put to use.

Spare parts and servicing equipment are recognized as property, plant and equipment, if they 

meet the definition property, plant and equipment and are expected to be used for more than 

one year. All other items of spares and servicing equipment are classified as item of inventories.

Subsequent Expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefit 

associated with the expenditure will flow to the company and cost of the asset can be measured 
reliably.

Property, Plant and Equipment not ready for its intended use on the reporting date is disclosed 

as Capital Work-in-Progress and carried at cost.

Any gain or loss on sale of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in profit or 
loss.

• Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is provided on the Straight Line Method (SLM) 

over the useful life of the assets as prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. In 

respect of the Property, Plant and Equipment purchased during the year, depreciation is 

provided on pro rata basis from the date on which such asset is ready to be put to use. The 

estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each 

reporting period, with the effect of any such change in the estimate accounted for on a 

prospective basis.

The estimated useful lives of items of Property, Plant & Equipment as prescribed in Schedule II 

of Companies Act, 2013 are as follows

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements



Notes to Standalone Financial Statements

Asset Class Estimated Useful Life
Buildings (incl. temporary structures) 3 - 60 Years
Plant & Machineries * 3 -15 years
Office Equipment 5 years
Furniture & Fixtures 10 years
Vehicles 8 -10 years
Computers & Peripherals 3 - 6 years

Based on technical evaluation by the independent valuer's report, the company has capitalized 

shuttering materials under Plant and Machinery class of asset by considering the useful life as 3 

years & accordingly the same will be depreciated over the useful life.

• De-recognition

Carrying amount of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no 

future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Gain or loss 

arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is determined 

as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is 

recognized in profit and loss statement.

b. Intangible Assets

• Recognition and Measurement

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are measured on initial 

recognition at cost and carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated 
impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits 

embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognized in profit 
and loss statement.

• Amortization

Amortization is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual 

values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. Amortization method, 

useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted if 

appropriate.

Asset Class Estimated Useful Life
Softwares 10 Years

Derecognition



An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are 

expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset 

easured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the' 
asset, recognized in profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

c. Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets

possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the 

recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable 

and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also 7 o Z T ! o  

individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash- 

generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are

b e t  p !” e 7 " ™ “ '

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use In

assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value

using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of

money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not 
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its 

carrymg amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) Is reduced to its 

recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash- 

generating unit) IS increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the 

increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been 

etermined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in 

prior years, A reversal of an Impairment loss Is recognized immediately In profit or loss,

d. Inventories

Stock of construction materials, stores & spares and consumables is valued at cost or net 

realizable value, whichever is lower after providing for obsolescence, if any, except in case of 

byproducts which are valued at net realizable value. However, materials and other items held 

for use m civil construction work and / or production of inventories are not written down below 

cost I f  the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or 

above cost. Cost of inventories comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements



Notes to Standalone Financial Statements

e. Foreign Currency Transactions

-  a p p . . .

l i a b . . i e s , . e . , . e l s „ , e . a r ; v l : t a  Le^^^= :::::::z:::::::T' T“=
. e  a . .

f. Borrowing Costs

production of qualifying a s are L  a'; .  "  “

S = ; : = ~ ~ r ^
g. Revenue Recognition

x:=:;:— ;r. rtr: “r ■“ •
accounting policy related ,o  revenue recognition under ind AS 115 '  "

• Service income

irr,T  r : * " ? ' “ « = - d  m the

contracts '^pas o ,

I «  r e t c T " '"

> the rate at which performance obligations are fulfilled, corresponding to the 
transfer to a customer of control of a good or service-

> Amount to which the seller expects to be entitled as'consideration for its activities 

The w a y  ,n which transfer of control of a good or service is analyzed is crucial, since

transfer determines the recognition of revenue. The transfer of control of a



Notes to Standalone Financial Statements

I on a specific date (recognition on completion), 

agreed milestones and are net of indirect t a x e s ' l le T e T a p X a b le .^ '  of

rr::zrr.:;::r
as distinct under Ind AS 115, and where the contra t “ ™ i« s  regarded

" - n d  a,one s e .n .  p .ce s" o , the

recognized as a distinct contract, services, those amendments are

only to the extent tha tT t\ "tigh ly  p t r a b l ' r t L T ' ' ' " * ’" ' ' / ' ' ’  ̂ “ "tract revenue

c ™ ^ . . .e . v e n „ e r e c o g n .e d : i , :n o r o “ :a :: : :r ,r :; :^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^

.t c t i C o T ::: r , t  cT " ' ” - ■-
Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue. “ ^pany on behalf of the government.

Sale of Goods

when the control of goods is transferred to a recognized at a point in time

customer can independent,; det“ e u : : r : : f ^ ^ ''

rights, the transfer of risks and rewards,“ n°d l ^ l Z Z l T c Z T e T "

• Other Income

~ ; ™ ~ r r . ~  s r i

> The gross carrying amount of the financial assets, or

> The amortized cost of the financialliability

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive dividend is established,

h. Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to 

customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer



Notes to Standalone Financial Statements

before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is 
recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is 

unconditiona, ,i .e „ on,y the passage of time is required before payment of The r ^ Ir a t io n

Contract liabilities

Cor^pany has received consideration (or an amount of consideration Is due) from the 

customer If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services

is 1  r ? 7 " '  '  P=V"'ent is made or the payment
is due (whichever ,s earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company 
performs under the contract. ^u.npany

i. Employee Benefits

• Short Term Employee Benefits

« l  empl^oyee benefits falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are 

classified as short term employee benefits. These are measured on an undiscounted basis and 

expensed as the related service is provided, A liability is recognized fo r the amount expected to 

be paid ,f the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a 

result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably,

• Long Term Employee Benefits

> Defined benefit plans

The company's gratuity benefit scheme is defined benefit plan. The company's net 

obligation in respect of defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future 

benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior 

periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The Company accounts 

for the liability for the gratuity benefits payable in future based on an independent actuarial 

valuation earned out using Projected Unit Credit Method considering discounting rate 

relevant to Government Securities at the Balance Sheet Date.

Defined benefit costs in the nature of current and past service cost and net interest expense 

or income are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they 

occur. Acturial gains and losses arising from defined benefit plans in the balance sheet with 

a charge or credit recognized in other comprehensive income in the period in which they 

occur and is reflected immediately in retained earnings and not reclassified to profit or loss 

Past service cost is recognized in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment.

The Company determines the net interest expense/ (income) on the net defined benefit 

liability/ (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure th e jie iu ie d  

benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net def ‘



liability/ (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability/ (asset) 

during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense 

and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognized in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in 

benefit that relates to past service ('past service cost' or 'past service gain') or the gain or 

loss on curtailment is recognized immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognizes 

gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

> Defined Contribution plan

Company s contribution to provident fund and employee state insurance scheme are 

considered as defined contribution plans and are charged as an expense as they fall due 

based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when services are rendered 

by the employee.

> Compensated Absences

Employees can carry forward a portion of the unutilized accrued leaves and utilize it in 

future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. 

Provision for Compensated Absences and its classifications between current and non- 

current liabilities are based on independent actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation is 

done as per the projected unit credit method as at the reporting date.

j. Income Tax

Income tax comprises of current tax and deferred tax. It is recognized in the profit and loss 

statement, except to the extent that it relates to and item recognized directly in equity or in 

other comprehensive income.

• Current Tax

Current tax comprises of the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss 

for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. 

The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or 

received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using 

tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantially enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current income tax liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be 

recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute 

the amount are those that are enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date.

The company has opted for new tax regime Pursuant to Taxation Law (Amendment) Ordinance, 

2019 ("Ordinance") issued by Ministry of Law and Justice (Legislation Department) on 

September 20, 2019 and which is effective from April 1, 2019, domestic companies have an 

option to pay corporate Income Tax @ 22% + Surcharge and Cess ("New Tax Rate") subject to 

certain conditions as per section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Since, the company has 

opted for new tax regime no Minimum Alternate Tax would be applicable now onv^
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• Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 

assets and liabilities in the company's financial statements and the corresponding tax bases 

used in computation of taxable profit. Deferred Tax is also recognized in respect of carried 

forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences to the extent 

that is probable that taxable profit will be available against which those deductible temporary 

differences can be utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of 

each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient 

taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the 

period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on the tax rates and tax laws 

that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would 

follow from the manner in which the company expects, at the end of reporting period, to 

recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current 

tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the 

same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities 

and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

Any tax credit available is recognized as deferred tax to the extent that it is probable that future 

taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax credit can be utilized. The said asset 

is created by way of credit to the statement of Profit and loss and shown under the head of 

deferred tax.

k. Segment Reporting

In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 108 - "Segment Reporting", the Company is 

primarily engaged in a business of Infrastructure Development and has no other primary 

reportable segments. Further, the Company operates on Pan India basis and accordingly has no 

reportable geographical segments. The Managing Director of the Company allocates the 

resources and assess the performance of the Company, thus he is the Chief Operating Decision 

Maker (CODM). The CODM monitors the operating results of the business as a single segment. 

Hence no separate segment needs to be disclosed.

I. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a 

result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 

benefits will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be at the

reporting date.



Provision are recognized based on the best estimate of the management with respect to the 

amount required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into 

account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured 

using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the 

present value of those cash flows when the effect of the time value of money is material.

Disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present 

obligation that may, but probably will not require an outflow of resources embodying economic 

benefits or the amount of such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is a possible 

obligation or a present obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources 

embodying economic benefits is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

A contingent asset is not recognized but disclosed in the financial statements where inflow of 
economic benefits is probable.

m. Financial instruments

• Initial Recognition & measurement

Financial Instruments i.e. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are recognised when the 

Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Trade receivables 

and debt securities issued are initially recognized when they are originated. Financial 

instruments are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable 

to the acquisition or issue of financial instruments (other than financial instruments at fair value 

through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial instruments, 

as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of 

financial instruments assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are 
recognised in profit or loss.

The financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and presented on net basis in the Balance 

Sheet when there is a current legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and it 

IS intended to either settle on net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability 

simultaneously.

• Classification and subsequent measurement

(i) Financial assets

On initial recognition financial assets are classified in below categories;

> Financial assets at amortized cost

> Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, if and in the period 

company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements



> Financial assets at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost using effective interest method if it is 

held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to 

collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise 

on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) 

on the principal amount outstanding.

> Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial asset which does not meet 

the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as fair value through other 

comprehensive income (FVTOCI) is classified as at FVTPL.

■ Investments in Equity Instruments

All Equity Investments falling within the scope of Ind AS -  109 are measured at 

Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL) with all fair value changes being 

recognized in profit and loss statement.

• De-recognition of financial assets

A financial asset is primarily derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset 

have expired, or the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or 

has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third 

party under a pass through arrangement; and with that;

a) The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

b) The company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of 

the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

• Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the 

financial assets. Expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, 

unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case 

those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is 

required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be 

recognized is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.

• Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets of the Company, other than inventories and deferred tax assets are 

reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If 

any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.
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(ii) Financial liabilities

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on tlieir classification, as described below

> Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities 

designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss 

is designated at the initial date of recognition only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are 

satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses on changes in fair 

value of such liability are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

> Loans and Borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing borrow/ings are subsequently measured at 

amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss 

when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.

> Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Financial liabilities that are not held for trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are 

measured at amortized cost at the end of subsequent accounting period. The carrying 

amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortized cost are 

determined based on effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalized 

as part of cost of an asset is included in the 'finance cost' line item.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on 

acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is 

included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally 

applies to borrowings.

> De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from its balance 

sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 

substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 

modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the 

original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective 

carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
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n. Lease

Company as a lessee*

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases

excep for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes

lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to 
use the underlying assets.

i. Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the comnnencement date of the lease 

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and 

impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of 

nght-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs 

incurred, lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease 

incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis from the 

commencement date to the end of lease term. If ownership of the leased asset transfers 

to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a 

purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. 

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies of 
Impairment of non-financial assets.

ii. Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities 

measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The 

lease payments include fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable, variable 

lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid 

under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a 

purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of 

penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the 

option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate 

are recognised as expenses in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the 

payment occurs. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its 

incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate 

implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the 

amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for 

the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is 

remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease 

payments or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

iii. Short term leases and leases of low value of assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases 

of machinery and equipment. It also applies the lease of low-value assetsjfimgnition



exemption to leases that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term 

leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis 
over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in w/hich the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards 

incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income 

arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs 

incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying 

amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as 

rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they 
are earned.

The company has reviewed all the lease contracts and such contracts are falling under 

the exception criteria defined under Ind AS 116. Hence, there is no impact of Ind AS 116 - 

Leases on the financial statements of the Company.

o. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash on hand, bank balance in current 

and cash credit accounts and short term highly liquid instruments.

p. Earnings per share

Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to 

equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year 

attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding 

during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

q. interest in Joint Arrangements

As per Ind AS 111 - Joint Arrangements, investment in Joint Arrangement is classified as either 

Joint Operation or Joint Venture. The classification depends on the contractual rights and 

obligations of each investor rather than legal structure of the Joint Arrangement.

• In case of Joint Operation;

The Company recognizes its direct right to assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses of Joint 

Operations and its share of any jointly held or incurred assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.

The audited financial information of below mentioned joint operations ventured by the 

company have not been included in the standalone financial statements JSffT^f^unt of

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements
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unavailability of audited financial statements of the joint operations for the year ended March 

31, 2021 :

Joint Operation Country Controlling Share

MCLKSIPLJ/V India 10%

MCL KSIPLJVDhanbad India 10%

MCL KSiPL JV Gurajanapalli India 49%

Hence, the above joint operations have not been incorporated in the Standalone ind AS financial 

statements under the appropriate headings and are not included in the segments to which they 

relate as the audited financial information is not available



Note 6 : Non-current Investments

Kunal Structure (India) Private Limited

CIIM: U45200GJ2006PTC048080

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements

(Amount Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2021

As at 

March 31, 2020

Investment In equity Instruments of Joint Ventures 30.37
Unquoted

5000 Equity Shares in Kunal BSBK JV Private Limited, of Rs, 10 fully paid

up 0.51 0.51
CLASSIC NETWORK KSIPLJV 17.27 17.27
KSIPL SACHIN JV 19.47 19.47
MCL KSIPL Gurjanpalli (JV) 0.10 -

Investment In Mutual Funds measured at Fair Value Through Profit &

Loss

Quoted

1,00,000 units of SBI Dual Advantage Fund (G) - 10.60
97567.639 units of Union Corporate Fund Regular-Growth 11.71 10.87
Total 49.06 58.72

Note 6.1 : Refer Note 33 for Related party transactions and outstanding balances.

Note 6.2: In case of investments in shares of private limited companies w(hich are immaterial to the company and w^here fair value is not 

readily available from the market observable inputs are valued at Cost.

The aggregate book value and market value of quoted non - current investments and book value of un-quoted non-current investments 

are as fo llow s:

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2021

As at 

March 31, 2020

Quoted non-current Investments in mutual funds

Aggregate book value 10.00 20.00

Aggregate market value 11.71 21.47

Aggregate book value of un-quoted non-current Investments 37.25 37.25

Note:

The company has entered into various joint arrangements for execution of various projects which are classified as joint operations or joint 

ventures as under:

A) Joint Operations

Name of Joint Operations

Proportion of Economic Interest

As at 

March 31, 2021

As at 

March 31, 2020

MCL - KSIPL (JV) 6URAJANAPALLI 49% 49%

MCL-KSIPL (JV) DHANBAD 10% 10%

MCL-KSIPL (JV) Port Blair 10% 10%

B) Joint Ventures

Name of Joint Ventures

Proportion of Economic Interest

As at 

March 31, 2021

As at 

March 31, 2020

Classic Network KSIPLJV 40% 40%

Kunal BSBK Joint Venture Pvt. Ltd. 51% 51%

Sripathy-Kunal JV 10% 10%

SRM-KunalJV 45% 45%



Note 7 : Other Non current financial assets

Kunal Structure (India) Private Limited

CIN: U45200GJ2006PTC048080

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements

(Amount Rs. In lakhs)

Particulars As at 

March 31, 2021
As at

^Lcui iiy dc^iubib drid monies retained by customers

Fixed Deposits - Maturing after 12 months from rppnrtinp
Total ---------------------

Note 7.1 .ecurity deposits and monies retained by customers include

4,286.70

2,139.52

6,426.22
r i< a n n c it-c  n f  D r

ividrcn 51, ZUZU

5,227.68

3,006.06

8,233.74

-------- - , „a:> given in ravor ot tne company.

w i ;  c a p l ' r S s " ' '  Deposit or Lien Marked with bank for

Note 8 : Deferred Tax (Assets)/ Liabilities (Net!____________

Particulars

Deferred tax Liabilities ' -----------

Excess of depreciation and amortization on fixed assets under income tax 

law over depreciation and amortization provided in accounts

Fair Valuation of financial liabilities

Fair Valuation of financial instruments carried at FVTPL

Unamortised Transaction Costs

Expenses allowed u/s 43B of income tax law

Less: Deferred Tax Assets

As at 

March 31, 2021
As at 

March 31, 2020

Provision for Expected Credit Loss

Provision for Gratuity

Provision for Compensated absences

Provision for Bonus

Fair Valuation of financial assets

Unabsorbed Losses

MAT Credit Entitlement__________
Total

240.00 306.35
257.82 352.03

0.23 0.44
4.48 7.83

130.35 168.50

94.52 86.89
8.41 13.95

19.20 36.44
18.28 17.12

190.45 286.08
1,325.94 .

Note 8,1 Refer Note 42 for Movement in Deferred Taxes. 

Note 9 : Other Non current assets

(1,023.92) 394.67



Note 1 1 : Trade receivables

Kunal Structure (India) Private Limited

CIN: U45200GJ2006PTC048080

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements

(Amount Rs. in lal<hs)

Particulars As at 

March 31, 2021
As at

Unsecured, considered good

Allowance for expected credit loss (Refer Note 1 1 7 ) 
Total

12,393.16 _________________  11,663.57
12,393.16

375.56

12.017.60

11,663.57 

345.24 

11.318.33 
— —

, ,  dBdinsL wurKjng capital facility. (Refer Note 22 1)

Note 11.4 Trade Receivables as at March 31, 2021 includes Rs. 2787.83 Lakhs representing the claims awarded in arbitration in favor of 
the company and which have been challanged by customers in District and Sessions Court.

Ageing of Receivables

Particulars As at 

March 31, 2021
As at 

March 31, 2020
Outstanding for a period less than six months

10,237.67 10 0 7 0 iq
Outstanding for a period more than six months

2,155.49 1,593.38Total Receivables
12,393.16 11,663.57

Change in Allowance for Expected Credit Loss

Particulars As at As at

At the beginning of the year 

Addition During the year 

Reversal During the Period / year 

Provision at the end of the year

March 31, 2021

345.24

30.32

375.S6

_________ March 31, 2020

290.88

54.36

345.24

Note 11.3 : Refer Note 33 for Related party transactions and outstanding balances. 

Note 12 ; Cash and Bank Balance

Particulars As at 

March 31, 2021
As at 

March 31, 2020
(A) Cash and Cash Equivalents

a) Balance with banks

- In Current Accounts

- In Cash Credit Accounts

- In Credit Card Accounts

b) Cash on hand

32.88

155.79

0.37

22.51

1,084.71

22.28

33.04Total (A)
211.55 1,140.03

(B) Bank balances other than Cash and Cash equivalents

Fixed Deposits - Maturing within 12 months from reporting date* 6,657.54 5,997.64
Total (B)

6,657.54 5,997.64
Total (A+B)

* Above Fixed r)pnn<:it<: maHp u/it-h hani/ ic frii/an —  — r__
6,869.09 7,137.67

working capital facilities.



Note 13 : Other Current financial assets

Kunal Structure (India) Private Limited

CIN: U452006J2006PTC048080

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements

{Amount Rs. in lal<hs)

Particulars As at 

March 31, 2021
As at

M a r r h  7^*90jL Lu iiiy  Ucpuiilb and monies retained by customers 

Loans & Advances to Employees 

Other Interest Receivable

Total ---------- ---------- --------------------------

6,227.5C

36.94

43.8S

iv ia iv i i  £ U , c U

’ 5,082.26 

' 35.12 

' 103 13
6,308.32 5,220.51

Note 14 ; Current tax assets (Net)

Particulars

Current tax assets (Net of provisions for taxes)

As at 

March 31, 2021
As at

___________March 31, 2020

Current tax assets (Net) -------------- -------------- ---------
----------------------------

1.734.21

1.734.21
1.752.39

1.752.39

Note 15 : Other current assets

Particulars As at 

March 31, 2021
As at 

March 31 207nrfepdicJ expenses

Balance with Government Authorities

Advance to Suppliers

Unbilled Revenue

Other current assets

Total

527.51

4,282.87

5,695.40

18,839.00

1,772.43

589.14

4,875.60

5,140.34

17,710.54

1,505.14

Note 16 ; Share capital

a) Authorized, Issued, Subscribed & Paid up Share Capital

31,117.21 29,820.76

Particulars As at 

March 31, 2021
As at 

March 31, 2020

Authorised: ' -----------------

55,00,000 equity share capital of Rs.lO  Each

Issued, Subscribed & fully Paid u d  :

50,30,000 equity share capital of Rs.lO Each fuliv oaid up
Total ~ -----------------------------------------------------------

550.00

503.00

550.00

___________________________ 503.00

b) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the end of the reporting per

503.00

iod :

503.00

Particulars As at 

March 31, 2021
As at 

March 31, 2020Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 

Add: Bonus Shares issued during the year

Equity Shares at the end of the vear

50.30.000

50.30.000

50,30,000

CO o n  n n n

c) Rights of Shareholders and Repayment of capital

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled for one 

vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of

h e L  b ^ h T s L 'r fh X ; shares

Particulars

1 j/o i:huily bndres or me Lompi

As at 

March 31, 2021

any;-

As at 

March 31, 2020
Arvindbhai Amrutlal Domadia 

Kunal Arvindbhai Domadia 

Shantamrut Infrastructure Pvt Ltd

There are no shsrp^ whirh aro kn __________ _ . ■

25,40,000 25,40,000
50.50% 50.50%

17,70,000 17,70,000
35.19% 35.19%

5,20,000

10.34%
5,20,000

_______________________10.34%

into equity shares.

2nd Floor, 
Aakashganga Com. 

P a ld i.A ’bad-7.



Note 17 : Other Equity

Kunal Structure (India) Private Limited

CIN: U45200GJ2006PTC048080

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements

(Amount Rs. in Ial<h5)

Particulars

Retained earnings - Surplus of Profit and Loss

Balance at the beginning of the year 

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

Balance at the end of the year

Other Comprehensive Income - Remeasurement of Defined Benefit
Balance at the beginning of the year 

Actuarial Gain / Loss on Defined Benefit Plans

As at 

March 31, 2021

30,851.89

(4,330.24)

26,521.65

As at 

March 31, 2020

28,095.72

2,756.17

30,851.89

Balance at the end of the year

Securities Premium

Balance at the beginning of the year 

Addition / Utilisation during the year 

Balance at the end of the year

17.22

58.23

75.45

1,387.00

28.90

( 11 .68 )

17.22

1,387.00

Total Other Equity
1,387.00

27,984.10
1,387.00

32,256.11

Note 18 : Long Term Borrowings

Particulars As at 

March 31, 2021
As at 

March 31, 2020

Secured Term loan from banks 

Secured Term loan from Others 

Unsecured Term loan from banks

Less : Transaction costs in accordance with Ind AS 109

3,711,17

2,671,83

Total

Unsecured loans from related parties 

Unsecured Loans from Inter-Corporate 

Total

1,701.94

3,547.49

32.23
6,382.99

6.97
5,281.66

15.06
6,376.02

2,500.75

1,500.00

5,266.60

2,827.15

1,500.00
10,376.77

Refer Note 18.1 for details relating to the long term borrowings 

Note 18.2 : Current maturities of long term borrowings have been presented under other current financial liabilities. 

Note 18.3 : Refer Note 33 for Related party transactions and outstanding balances.

Note 19 : Other Non current financial liabilities

9,593.75

Particulars As at 

March 31, 2021
As at 

March 31, 2020

Security deposits and retention money 2,886.50 4,067.77
Total 2,886.50 4,067.77

Note 20 : Long term provisions

Particulars As at 

March 31, 2021
As at 

March 31, 2020

Provision for Compensated Absences (Refer Note 35) 65.52 96.69
Total 65.52 96.69



Notes to Standalone Financial Statements

Kunal Structure (India) Private Limited

CIN: U45200GJ2006PTC048080

Note 2 1 : Other Non current liabilities (Amount Rs. in lakhs)

Note 23.1 : Trade Payable are payable on account of goods purchased and services availed in the normal course of business.

2 o t 'c e i.':̂ :o ? u :e ^ a T e ^ ;;l;e ^ tlt^ ^  (MSMED, which came into force from 2 October

respect of such vendors to the extent they could be identified as micro and ii ^ fiterprisesJhe information has been given in

company.The company has obtained w a L r  letteJ lo r^ ^ T rlt p Z b l to T "  "  ‘ 'li'

regarding terms of repayment. Nil interest is payable to MSME vendors. "^"''^'"'‘ anding with

Particulars As at 

March 31, 2021
As at 

March 31 7n?n
I- 1 Iipupdl leiiidining unpaid to any supplier as the year end 

Interest due thereon
1,678.97 38.82

Amount of interest paid by company in terms of section 16 of the 

MSMED, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier 

beyond the appointed day during the accounting year.

- -

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 

payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the 

period) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED

-

Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the 
accounting year/period . -

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in succeeding 
years.

.

-

Note 23,3 : Refer Note 33 for Related party transactions and outstanding balances.



Kunal Structure (India) Private Limited

CIN; U45200GJ2006PTC048080

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements

Note 24 ; Other current financial liabilities (Amount Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 

March 31, 2021
As at 

March 31, 2020
Current maturities of long term borrowings (Refer Note 18.1)
Secured

- From Banks

- From Financial Institutions 

Unsecured

- From Banl<s

Le ss : Transaction Cost as per Ind AS 109

Employee related dues

Creditors for capital goods

Security deposits and retention money

Interest Accrued but not due____________

Total ~

Total

912.81

1,598.33

340.11

2,851.25

10.82

2,840.43

488.59

94.89

3,388.06

66.10

Note 24.1 Refer Note 33 for Related party transactions and outstanding balances. 

Note 25 : Short term provisions

6,878.07

549.59

968.08

113.98

1,631.65

16.06

1,615.59

423.99

93.18

3,427.79

319.74

5,880.29

Particulars As at

March 31, 2021_________
As at 

March 31, 2020
Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 35)

Provision for Compensated Absences (Refer Note 35)
Total

------ = = = = = = = = = = = J

33.41

10.76

44.17

55.42

48.09

103.51

Note 26 ; Other current liabilities

Particulars As at 

March 31, 2021
As at 

March 31, 2020
Advances from customers

Statutory Dues

Other Current Liabilities

2,666.96

219.52

387.69

1,509.76

590.58

389.32Total
----— 3,274.17 2.489.66----------  * ----------

Note 27 : Revenue from Operations

Particulars For the year ended 

March 31, 2021
For the year ended 

March 31, 2020
Sale of Services

Contract Receipts
58,480.73 83,840.31

Sale of Goods

Material sales
215.99 2,111.69

Other Operating Revenues

Scrap Sales 

Others
198.74

49.35
165.72

106.18
Total

58,944.81 86,223.90

Note 27.2 Refer Note 37 for Disclosure as per Ind AS 115 -Revenue from contracts with Customers

Note 27.3 Contract Receipts for the year ended March 31, 2021 includes Rs. 2787.83 Lakhs representing the claims awarded in arbitration

in favor of the company and which have been challanged by customers in District and Sessions Court. GST Liablity is also not discharge on

the claims awarded because of the same are challanged in the District and Sessions Court.



Note 28 : Other Income

Kunal Structure (India) Private Limited

CIN: U45200GJ2006PTC048080

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements

(Amount Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Interest on Deposits with Banks 

Other Interest
474.85 564.47

Miscellaneous Income
134,81 5.03

Sundry Creditors Written Off
55.60 111.34

Share of Profit From Joint Ventures
1 7  7 7

926.51

Gain on Fair Valuation of Security Deposit
X !  , f  i .

379.95
112.23

209.47
Gain on Sale of Mutual Funds

0.09
Gain arising on financial assets measured at FVTPL

0.84 0.77
Total

1,063.86 1.929.82

Note 29 : Construction Expenses

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Consumption of Construction Material

Inventory at the beginning of the year 13,353.27 10,665.36
Add: Purchase during the year 22,386.12 26,796.75
Less: Inventory at the end of the year (12,942.25) (13,353.27)
Material Consumed during the year 22,797.14 24,108.84

Other Construction Expenses

Carting & Transport Expenses 2,008.93 2,286.40
Works & Labour Contract 26,439.82 41,344.88
Technical & Consultancy Charges 37.96 360.33
Consumption of Spares, Tools and Consumables 284.77 172.40
Testing Expenses 4.24 17.04
Rates & Taxes 45.41 18.62
Repairs & Maintenance of Plant & Machinery 334.25 471.03
Machinery Hiring Charges 805.70 743.35
Other Construction Expenses 331.53 346.42
Total 53,089.75 69,869.31

Note 30 : Employee Benefits Expenses

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Salaries, Wages and Incentives 3,330.97 4,497.98
Directors Remuneration 478.47 530.70
Contribution to Provident, Gratuity and Other Funds 202.45 207.83
Compensated Absences (63.74) 48.20
Staff Welfare Expenses 64.81 147.04
Total 4,012.96 5,431.75
Note 30.1 Refer Note 33 for Related party transactions.

Note 31 : Finance Costs

Particulars
For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Interest on Working Capital Facilities 1,818.58 1,847.35
Interest on long term borrowings 1,287.91 702.92
Interest on Loans from Related Parties 320.77
Other interest expense 301.84 274.08
Other Borrowing Costs 1,021.36 1,018.88
Fair Valuation of Security Deposit 374.33 217.57
Total 4,804.02 4,381.57
Note 31.1 Refer Note 33 for Related party transactions.



Note 32 : Other Expenses

Kunal Structure (India) Private Limited

CIN: U45200GJ2006PTC048080

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements

Particulars

Advertisement Expenses 

Auditor's Remuneration 

Donation

Computer Repairs & Maintenance Expenses 

Corporate Social Responsibility 

Electricity Expenses 

Expected Credit Loss 

Security Expenses

Net loss on account of foreign exchange fluctuation 
Rent expense 

Insurance Expenses 

Rates & Taxes 

Building

Communication Expenses 

Travelling Expenses 

Legal & Professional Expenses 

Lodging Expenses

Loss on sale /  disposal of items of property, plant and equipment (net)
Office Expenses

Stationary & Printing Expenses

Sundry Balance Write off

Vehicle Expenses

Tender fees

Miscellaneous Expenses 
Total

For the year ended 

March 31, 2021

(Amount Rs. in lakhs)

For the year ended 

March 31, 2020

4.85
1.03

59.10
44.00

33.00
119.10

52.15 62.62
32.87

11.75
212.29 298.21
30.31 54.36

354.04 319.14
" 22.19

319.00 497.40
207.97 374.42
105.82 189.62

0.16 0.19
6.96 9.97

123.92 169.71
109.67 223.17
80.52 127.80
34.02 244.87
21.06 34.00
24.26 34.43
22.38

140.43 198.96
25.32

33.98
5.52

,034.08
46.61

________________________^089.07
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Kunal Structure (India) Private Limited

CIN: U45200GJ2006PTC048080

Note 18.1 Long Term  Borrow ings

(Amount Rs. in lakhs)

7nU Flum.* \ 
A akashganga Com . j 

\ P atd i.A ’bad-7. /k ./



24

25

Kunal Domadia

Tarulata Domadia

26

Unsecured

Unsecured

Ban Labs Private Ltd

Total

Contribution from Promoter and/or their 
Relatives

Unsecured

•ontribution from Promoter and/or their 
Relatives

Intercorporate Loan

1,363.55

131.32

1,500.00

--------------------------------- ------------------------ 13,234.99 ------------------ ---------

R . l  ® to 14.83%
Range of Installment are ranging from Rs.14,770 to 1,04,17,123

Year

2021-22

2022-23

2023-24

2024-25

No. of EMI

3 2 4 1

2 8 2 7

1 7 0 6

2025-25
5 1 5

1 3 5

To bank

925
To others

831

447

158

117

2315

1996

1259

357

18



Kunal Structure (India) Private Limited

CIN: U45200GJ2006PTC048080

Note 22.1 Short Term Borrow ings

Sr.
No.

11

12

13

16

17

18

Particulars of 
Lenders

ICICI Bank

Nature of Facility

WCDL(Sublimit of CC)

Axis Bank

Cash Credit

LC Discounting

WCDL(Sublimit of CC)

30.37

Cash Credit

Credit Card

WCDL(Sublimit of CC)

IDBI

Yes Bank

Cash Credit

WCDL

Cash Credit

WCDL(Sublimit of CC)

BOB

Kotak

Cash Credit

Cash Credit

Cash Credit

HDFCBank

Allahbad Bank

WCDL(Sublimit of CC)

Cash Credit

WCDL(Sublimit of CC)

UBI

BOI

P &S Bank

Cash Credit

Cash Credit

Cash Credit

SBI

Oxyzo

A.Trades Limited

Cash Credit

Credit Card

Bill Discounting

Bill Discounting

Total

Amount 
outstanding as 
on 31.03.2021

500.00

Mode of Repayment

Repayable within 90 Days

1 ,035.17

1 ,000.00

Repayable on demand subject to annual 
renewal

Nature of Security

(Amount Rs. in lakhs)

Repayable within 90 Days

Repayable within 90 to 180 Days

496.24

2 , 114.12

1 ,439.70

Repayable on demand subject to annual 
renewal

Repayable within 21 days from cut off date

Repayable within 150 Days

1 ,380.00

931.97

750.00

Repayable on demand subject to annual 
renewal

Repayable within 90 Days

Repayable on demand subject to annual 
renewal

1,491.32

Repayable within 90 Days

Repayable on demand subject to annual 
renewal

Repayable on demand subject to annual 
renewal

1,320.00

786.45

1,260.00

Repayable on demand subject to annual 
renewal

Repayable within 90 Days

Repayable on demand subject to annual 
renewal

820.29

1,003.83

194.50

Repayable within 90 Days

Primary Security:

Secured by Hypothecation of inventory, 

receivables, and current assests of the 

company

Colleteral Security:

First Pari Passu Charge by way of 

i) equitable mortgate on immovable properties 

of company, directors, relatives and friends 

ii)Fixed Deposit of Rs.900 lakhs lien iVlarked. 

iii) Unemcumbered Plant & Machinery

Personal Guarantees of directors, relatives and 

friends

Repayable on demand subject to annual 
renewal

Repayable on demand subject to annual 
renewal

969.75

587.13

Repayable on demand subject to annual 
renewal

Repayable on demand subject to annual 
renewal

891.06

2 ,611.61

21,583.14

Repayable within 21 days from cut off date

Repayable within 90 Days

Repayable within 90 Days

Nil Balance reflects debit balance in cash credit account as per books of accounts.

Unsecured

Unsecured

Unsecured

Note:

Rate of Interest for working capital loans are ranging from 8% to 12%



Note 33 : Related Party Transactions

Kunal Structure (India) Private Limited

CIN: U45200GJ2006PTC048080

(Amount Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars
For the yi

March 31. 2021
ear ended

SRM -KS IPLJV
_____________March 31, 2020

SRM -KS IPLJV

Classic Network KSIPLJV Classic Network KSIPLJV
Sripathy KSIPL JV Sripathy KSIPLJV

Joint Ventures Kunal BSBK JV Pvt. Ltd. Kunal BSBK JV Pvt. Ltd.
MCL-KSIPL(JV)

MCL-KSIPL Dhanbad (JV) 

MCL-KSIPL (Gurjanpall) (JV)

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Arvind Domadia 

(Managing Director)

Kunal Domadia (D irector)

Khushbu Kunal Domadia 

(Vice President)

Arvind Domadia 

(Managing Director)

Kunal Domadia (D irector)

Khushbu Kunal Domadia 

(Vice President)

Neha patel 

(Company Secretary)

Relatives of KMP

For the year ended on

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Arvind Amrultlal Domadia HUF Arvind Amrultlal Domadia HUF
Kunal Arvindbhai Domadia HUF 

Tarulataben Arvind Domadia
Kunal Arvindbhai Domadia HUF 

Taru lataben Arvind Domadia

Particulars For the yea

M arch 31 7071

trended on
Jk M _ L  M ̂

Enterprises over which KMP and/or Relatives of KMP 

are able to exercise significant Influence

Dom Pharma Private Limited Dom Pharma Private Limited
Shantam rut Infrastructure Private 

Limited
Shantam rut Infrastructure Private 

Limited

Domad Technologies Private Limited Domad Technologies Private Limited

Doms Delicious Private Limited Doms Delicious Private Limited
Dom Reality Private Limited Dom Reality Private Limited
Shantam rut Foundation Shantam rut Foundation
Garnet Suppliers LLP 

Ajay Infraspace Pvt Ltd
Garnet Suppliers LLP 

Ajay Infraspace Pvt Ltd



Note 33 : Related Party Transactions

Kunal Structure (India) Private Limited

CIN; U45200GJ2006PTC048080

(Amount Rs. in lakhs)

Related Party Transactions : Key Management Personnel and their relatives

Particulars
For the year ended

March 31, 2021
Director Remuneration

Arvind Domadia 

Kunal Domadia
243.59

234.89

478.47
260.13

530.70

Salary

88.58
Neha Patel_________

Tarulata Domadia

98.39

4.07
88.58 98.39

200.85177.16



Note 33 : Related Party Transactions

Kunal Structure (India) Private Limited

CIN: U45200GJ2006PTC048080

(Amount Rs. in lakhs)

Remuneration/Salary Payable

Arvind Domadia
13,83

Kunal Domadia _
12.45

Khushbu Domadia 5.00 4.81
Neha Patel _

0.31
Tarulata Domadia _

5.30
Total

5.00 36.70

Interest Expense

Arvind Domadia . 96,37
Kunal Domadia - 192.61
Tarulataben Domadia - 31.79
Total . 320.77

Related Party Transactions : Key Management Personnel and their relatives

Particulars For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Loan from KMP at the Beginning of the year

Arvind Domadia 979.74 655.14
Kunal Domadia 1,724.28 602.23
Tarulataben Domadia 123.13 355,22
Total 2,827.15 1,612.59

Loan Received From KMP During the year

Arvind Domadia 876.50 978,73
Kunal Domadia 446.50 2 ,186,35
Tarulataben Domadia 47.51 28,61
Total 1,370.51 3,193.69

Loan Repaid to KMP During the year

Arvind Domadia 850.36 654.13
Kunal Domadia 807.23 1,064.30
Tarulataben Domadia 39.32 260.70
Total 1,696.91 1,979.13

Loan from KMP at the end of the year

Arvind Domadia 1 ,005.87 979.74
Kunal Domadia 1,363.55 1,724.28
Tarulataben Domadia 131.32 123.13
Total 2,500.75 2,827.15



Kunal Structure (India) Private Limited

CIN: U45200GJ2006PTC048080

Note 33 : Related Party Transactions

Note;

transactions.



Note 34 - Financial Instruments and Fair Value Measurement 

A Categories of Financial Instruments

Kunal Structure (India) Private Limited

CIN: U45200GJ2006PTC048080

Particulars

Financial assets

(i) Investments (Refer Note Below)

(ii) Trade receivables

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents

(iv) Other financial assets

(v) Bank balance other than (iii) above

Financial liabilities

(i) Trade payables

(ii) Borrowings

(til) Other financial liabilities

Particulars

Financial assets

(i) Investments (Refer Note Below)

(ii) Trade receivables

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents

(iv) Other financial assets

(v) Bank balance other than (iii) above

Fa ir Value through 

Profit & Loss

Amount as at March 31.2021

Fair Value through Other 

Comprehensive Income

11,71

Amortised Cost

11.71

37.35

12,017.60

211,55

12,734.54

6.657.54

Total

31.658.58

18.131.55

34,818.14

6.913.32

59,863.01

Fair Value through 

Profit & Loss
Fair Value through Other 

Comprehensive Income

Amount as at March 31, 2020 

Amortised Cost

Financial liabilities

(i) Trade payables

(ii) Borrowings

(iii) Other financial liabilities

21.47

Total

37.25

11,318.33

1,140.03

13,454.25

5,997.64

31,947.50

17,454.42

29,210.76

8,316.41

54,981.59

(Amount Rs. in lakhs)

49.06

12,017.60

211.55

12,734.54

6,657.54

31,670.29

18,131.55

34,818.14

6,913.32

59,863.01

Total

58.72

11,318.33

1.140.03

13,454.25

5,997.64

31,968.97

17,454.42

29,210,76

8,316.41

54.981.59

valued using the closing price as at the re p M ln rre r io d  o r t l I e \ ! r c 7 e « L n g r '  exchange. It has been



Note 34 - Financial Instruments and Fair Value Measurement

Kunal Structure (India) Private Limited

ON: U45200GJ2006PTC048080

(Amount Rs. in lakhs)

B Capital Management

i) For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company The Comnan.

o p Z a rc  T T  ̂ h o L  The I p '  "  im to ™  t " roptimal capital structure through combination of debt and equity in a manner so as to minimize the cost of capital.

m) Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors its capital using Gearing Ratio, Net Debt (Short 
Equity (Capital plus Net Debt). Term and Long Term Borrowings including Current maturities) divided by Total

Particulars As at 

March 31, 2021

As at

March 31, 2020

Long Term Borrowings (Refer Note 18, 24) 

Short Term Borrowings (Refer Note 22)
13,217.20

21,583.15

11,209.34

17,970.30

Less: Cash & Cash Equivalents (Refer Note 12) 211.55 1,140,03

Net Debt 34,588.80 28,039.61

Total equity 28,487.10 32,759.11

Total Capital 28,487.10 32,759.11

Gearing Ratio 121,42% 85.59%

rhe °«p it ll sTrucTure^l^u^emen^^^ "^="=6ement, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the borrowings that define

C Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations 

and to support its operations. The Company's financial assets include trade and other receivables, and cash & cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risi< and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Board of Directors has overall 

responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. Risk management systems are reviewed periodically to reflect changes in market 

conniptions and the Company's activities. The Board of Directors oversee compliance with the Com pan/s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the risk management
framework.



Note 34 - Financial Instruments and Fair Value Measurement (Amount Rs. in lakhs)

1 Market Risk

^  .  c . n . e s  .  . a . ,  pnces. M a . . .  . . p n s e s  0, ,n .e .e .  n s .  < . e . „

1.1 Interest Rate risk

changes in market interest rates relates ptrn'arily'Tc=^l“ c r n !p a r y 'f  l “ . r f lo a t in g X e “s ' t T r * 'T t ! "  T ' " " '

var,abie ra.e . The C o .p an y  expects the variable rate to decline, accordingiy .he Company is currently car'^ing i.s loans a / y a r ia r Z e s V r r r

Kunal Structure (India) Private Limited

CIN: U45200GJ2006PTC048080

The sensitivity analysis haye been carried out based on the exposure to interest rates for loans carried a , variable rate.

Particulars

Variable Rate Borrowings

% change in interest rates

Impact on Profit for the year

As at 

March 31, 2021

17,000.00

0.50%

85.00

As at 

March 31, 2020

17,000.00

0.50%

85.00

As at 

March 31, 2019

14.800.00

0.50%

74.00
1.2 Foreign Currency Risk

e x Z l^ r f r e ig r c V ^ rn c y ^ T ir je t lT ^  of't'he s r . " h a t r e r g i l 7 r N 0te r r " "  " "  does not have significant

1.3 Commodity Risk

mitigated to certain extend based on the price'^escalatlrn c lL T ° n d 'r e r n ' ’the contacts w'tTthe cu «o ,I!™ . ̂  commodities is

Commodity As at As at

Bitumen
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Cement
18,97,819.41

8,42,89,676.50
19,57.232.38 

3,98,88 696 15
Steel (I ro n s  Steel) 18,13,93,729.01 23,85.20.577 OS
Crushed Stone

5,55,52,332.37 4,38,06.425.96

Bitumen

The sensitivity analysis below have been determine 

Particulars

Cement

Steel (Iron & Steel)

Crushed Stone

Price Variation

3%

3%

3%

3%

For the year ended 31/03/21

Increase

56,935

25,28,690

54,41,812

16,66,570

Decrease

(56,935)

(25,28,690)

(54,41,812)

(16,66,570)

For the year ended 31/03/20

Increase

58,717

11,96,661

71,55,617

13,14,193

Bitumen

Decrease

(58,717)

(11,96,661)

(71,55.617)

(13.14.193)

Particulars

Cement

Steel (Iron & Steel)

Crushed Stone

Price Variation

5%

5%

5%

5%

For the year ended 31/03/21 

Increase

94.891

42.14,484

90,69,686

27,77,617

Decrease

(94.891)

(42.14.484)

(90.69,686)

(27,77.617)

For the year ended 31/03/20

Increase

97.862

19.94.435

1,19,26,029

21,90,321

Decrease

(97,862)

(19.94.435)

(1,19.26.029)

(21.90,321)

1.4 Price Risk

The investments in mutual funds and equity instruments are designated as FVTPL 

Sensitivity analysis

Particulars As at 

March 31, 2021

As at 

March 31, 2020

Investment in Mutual Funds and equity Instruments 11,71,124.00 21,47,090.00
increase 1% (31 March 2021 1%) 11,711.24 21,470.90
decrease 1% (31 March 2021 1%} (11,711.24) (21,470.90)



Note 34 - Financial Instruments and Fair Value Measurement

Kunal Structure (India) Private Limited

CIN: U452006J2006PTC048080

(Amount Rs. in lakhs)

2 Credit Risk

primarily trade receivables and othe' aLrs tld ° in rd epoL7^^^^^ ^^^  Company is exposed to credit risk

aggregate value of transactions is reasonably spread amongst the counterparties. counterparties are continuously monitored and the

The carrying amount of following financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure:

Other financiat assets

collateral held = 8 a in s ^ h e s e lT a r e '? h e " u « r p a r e ! t e '6 r r r c I r ! ,7 = n ^ ^  f r r i d a l ' i n s t r . ' ' '
h.gh credit ratings assigned by credit rating agencies. ® Banks, mutual funds and recognised financial institutions have

Trade and other receivables

3 Liquidity Risk

through the use of bank overdrafts, cash - *< 'i° '= c ilit ts “ r i o ! n !  Th e 'c^ p ty "^ ^ ^  of funding and flexibility

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Particulars

As at March 31. 2021

Borrowings

Trade Payables

Other Financial Liabilities

As at March 31. 20g0

Borrowings

Trade Payables

Other Financial Liabilities

W ith in 1 Year

24,434,40

18,131.55

4.026.82

19,601.95

17,454.42

4,248.64

2 to 5 Year More than 5 Year

6.382.99

1,931.78

5,281.66

3,512.86

4.000.75

954.72

554.91

Carrying Amount

34.818.14

18.131.55

6,913.32

29,210.76

17,454.42

8,316.41



Kunal Structure (India) Private Limited 

CIN: U45200GJ2006PTC048080 
Note 35 : Employee Benefits

(a) Defined Contribution Plan (Amount Rs. in lakhs)

LOSS under the i" the Statement of Profit or

(b) Defined Benefit Plan:

Gratuity

p r:„7 : : : r e : ; : e t : t ^ : : ~
respective employee's salary and the tenure of employment.

J ^ s t a t u s  of gratuity plan as required under Ind AS-19 :

: retirement, death in t a t l'it l't l'° T '®  ^
I the t . n , , . : . ? ! ! : '  or termination of employment, of an amount b a '

sum

amount based on the



Particulars

j i i .  Gratuity Cost for the Yea r

Current serv ice cn<;t 

In terest Cost 

Past service Cost

jx p e n s e s  recognised in ttie incom e s ta tem ent 

Particulars

iv- Other Comprehensive Income

Actuaria l (G a in )/ lo s s

j e t u r n  on plan assets, exclud ing am ount re cognised in net

Components ot defined benefit costs recognised in othe7  
comprehensive income

V. Actuarial Assumptions 

Particulars

D i s c o u n t  R a t e  ( p e r  a n n u m )

Annual Increase In Sa la ry Cost 

Rate of Em ployee Tu rnove r

Kunal Structure (India) Private Limited

CIN: U45200GJ2006PTC048080
Note 35 : Employee Benefits

For the year ended 

March 31, 2021
For the year ended 

March 31, 2020

(Amount Rs. in lakhs)

55.80
39,81

For the year ended 

March 31, 2021
For the year ended 

March 31, 2020

(76 .66 )

(1 .15)

(77.81)

16.20

(0 .59)

15.61

As at March 31. 2021

~e!33%
_______________________ 7 .00%

For serv ice 4 years and below 

18.00%  p .a . For serv ice 5 years 

and above 5 ,00%  p.a.

As at March 31. 2020

^ ____________________ 7 .00%

For serv ice 4 yea rs and below  

18 .00%  p .a . For serv ice 5 

yea rs and above 5 .00%  p.a.

M orta l,„  , . , e s u n d e r  Indian A „ . r e d  Ll»es M o rta lity  I2 L - O 8 I A  j  58 ye a r! .

Vi. Sensitivity Analysis

increase and a ttrit ion  ra te , ' i h e  s e n s itM y  >>®™fit obligation a re  d iscount ra te , expected sala ry

a « u „ ,p t io n s  occurring at t . e  end o , tbe reporting yea r, » . l e  bolding all o Z i r p l l ^ n l ^ r C r

Particulars

Defined Benefit Ob ligation(Base)

Particulars

Discount Rate ( - /  + !% )

' _ { %  change compared to base due to sens it iv ity

l^ate o f Em ployee Tu rno ve r (- /  +1 %)

(% change compared to base due to sen s itiv itv l

Sa lary Grow th Rate (- /  + l% ) 

i%  change compared to base due to sensitiv ity l

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2021

Increase

-18 .24 

-54.60%

As at March 31, 2020

~5S!^

As at March 31, 2020



(Amount Rs. in lakhs)

As at March 31, 2021
As at March 31, 2020

Kunal Structure (India) Private Limited 

CIN: U45200GJ2006PTC048080 
Note 35 : Employee Benefits

Viii. Effect of Plan on Entity's Future Cash Flows

a) Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation

W e i g h t e d  A v e r a g e  d u r a t i o n  o f  t h e  d e f i n e d  b e n e f i t  o b l i g a t i o n  - 6  y e a r s

Particulars

Duration of the defined benefit obligation

1st Follow ing Year 

2nd Fallow ing yea r 

3rd Follow ing Vear 

4th Follow ing Year 

5th Follow ing Year 

Above 5 

Total

'--------------------  421 87

. r
The P „ „  e .p „ .  Company a. „ . e . s .

A S a „  i L ™ ; : " a ° v

by reference to m arket yie lds at the  e iro n h rre p o ^ rX rp e ^ rir^  o n^ lo ve '' '^hich is determ ined

rate , it w ill create a plan defic it. Cu rren tly fo r the plan in India t h P'an asset is below  this

secu rities , and o ther debt in strum ents . ' '  investm ents in governm ent

b) Other Long Term Employee Benefits

and included i„ -E 'JI,to ,irb e™ f!re rp “ „»̂ ^̂  ̂ sTa.m .m ''̂ ’,  “ ,” , 1 3 ' " “ “



Kunal Structure (India) Private Limited

CIN: U45200GJ2006PTC048080
Note 36 : Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

E^pen^ure towards Corporate Soda, ResponsiblN,, as per C o .p a .e s  Ac, 2013 read with Rules and Regulations

Particulars
(Amount Rs. in lakhsl

For the year ended

^  Gross Amount required to be spent by the Company 

B. Amount Spent during the year towards activities specified in CSR Policy (in
C3S n j !

31-Mar-20

127.92

Note 37 : Disclosure as per Ind AS 115 -Revenue from contracts with Customers

Profit and Loss with the
37.1. Reconciliation of the amount for revenue recognised in the Standalone Statement of 
contracted price;

(Amount Rs. in lakhs) 
For the year endedParticulars

Revenue as per contracted price

4,307.96
Revenue from contract with customers 1,019.41

58,480.73 83,840.31

37.2 Contract balances:

_____________(Amount Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars

Trade receivables

Unbilled revenue - Other assets

Contract liabilities - Customer advances

For the year ended
31-Mar-21

12,017.60

18,839.00

2,666.96

31-Mar-20

11,318.33

17,710.54

37.3 Reconciliation of contracted price with revenue during the year:

2,056.52



Kunal Structure (India) Private Limited

CIN: U45200GJ2006PTC048080

37.5 Unsatisfied performance obligations

The Company applies the practical expedient in paragraph 121 of Ind AS l i  S ;,nH Hn .  ,
remaining performance obligations where the Company has a nVht to w !  mformation about
corresponds diredv with the value the c u s to Z  of ,he  ̂ cons.derat.or, Iron, customer an amount that

the Company recognises revenue bv an amount to which the C o m p a rh a rrrh u o  in 'v o T e ''''

37.6 Costs to fulfill contracts

The company has also recognised an asset in relation to 
assets in the balance sheet. costs to fulfill contract. These are presented within other

Particulars As at 

March 31, 2021
As at 

March 31, 2020

The company has also recognised an asset in relation to costs to fulfill contract
471.70 852.61

Amortisation recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the 
year. 449.00 426.30

S r . V o ' T t r r r f «  115, the Companv recognises the Incremental costs of 
ulfilling as an expense when incurred If the amortisation period of the assets that the company otherwise

would have recognised is one year or less.



Kunal Structure (India) Private Limited

CIN: U45200GJ2006PTC048080
Note 38 : Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share

Particulars For the v(ear ended

Earnings per equity sliare --------------- ---------

Profit attributable to equity shareholders (Rs. In Lakhs)

Weighted average number of equitv shares o«standir,g durng the year*
Nominal value of equity per share

Basic and Diluted EPS (Rs. Per Share)

dl'’IVidr'’ZU

(4,330.24)

50,30,000

10

(86,09)

31-Mar-20

2,756.17

50,30,000

10

54.79



Note 39 : Foreign Currency Transactions and Exposure

Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure
(Amount Rs. in lal<hs)

The details of foreign currency exposure not hedged by derivatiye instruments are as under:

Kunal Structure (India) Private Limited

CIN: U45200GJ2006PTC048080

Particulars

Financial Liabilities

Non- Financial assets (Advance Payments)

As at 

March 31, 2021

p a following significant exchange rates have been applied durin . the v „ r

Particulars As at

March 31, 2021

As at 

March 31, 2020

73.50

As at 

March 31, 2020

75.39

The fo llow ing tab le  deta ils th e  Company's sensitivity tn Rc i /  in . .

Hpn • / h The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency

currency r a t e s " " " ' " '   ̂ 1 change in foreign

Particulars

Rs. 1 change in Exchange rate of USD

Impact on Profit for the year

Note 40 : Contingent liabilities and Commitments

As at 

March 31, 2021

(1.89)

As at 

March 31, 2020

6.22

Particulars As at 

March 31, 2021
As at 

March 31 2070
a) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt
b) Guarantees

i) Outstanding Bank Guarantees

ii) Guarantees issued on behalf of third parties

c) Other money for which the company is contingently liable (Direct 
and Indirect Taxes)

36,501.50

2,441.11

20.36

iviwivii

37,377.13

2,637.99

20.34



Kunal Structure (India) Private Limited 

CIIM: U45200GJ2006PTC048080
Disclosure regarding major arbitration / litigation matters

r M I P a  ru rs u a n T tT th re l (CIN: U45209GJ2002PTC040369)

abandonment of the contract work by MIPL without
contractual obligations, the Company had to makp a justification and breach of

works itself. MIPL, through its legal counsels in itia tlTa^  cl^im f unexecuted potion of
10,660.56 lakhs. The company has denied all thp ;,ii f  7  contractual dues to the tune of INR

aggregating to INR 12,705.63 lakhs through Civil C o u rT tlZ rd a L 'g ls ''su k T e ?b y \ ^ ^

proceedings are pending at the reporting date.  ̂ agreement between the two parties. The

40.(a).(ii). The company has lodged an escalation claim of Rs 3 037 55 la kh , rpb tm . t .  ■

= = - = = = £ = = 1 =

b) Commitments

Particulars

(An

As at 

March 31, 2021

lount Rs. in lakhs) 

As at 

March 31 707n
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital 

account and not provided for (net of capital'advances) 606.45

■ viaivii JX ,

24.56

Note 41 - Payment to Auditors
(Amount Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars

For Audit

For Taxation matters

Total

As at 

March 31, 2021

44.00

6.00

50.00

As at 

March 31, 2020

39.00

5.00

44.00



Kunal Structure (India) Private Limited

CIN: U45200GJ2006PTC048080

Note 42 : Movement in Deferred tax Assets/ Liabilities

A. Amount Recognised in Profit and Loss

Particulars

Current income tax:  ̂ ' ----

Current income tax charge

(Excess) / Short provision of earlier periods

Deferred tax:

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 

Total

For the year ended 

IVIarch 31, 2021
For the year ended 

March 31, 2020

(Amount Rs. in lakhs)

(230.88)

32.87

30.37

(1,438.18)

(1,605.82)

936.99

(45.48)

B. Income Tax in Other Comprehensive Income

Particulars For the year ended 

March 31, 2021
For the year ended 

March 31, 2020Deferred tax:

Remeasurements gains and losses on post employment benefits (19.58) 3.93Income tax expense reported in the statement of other 
comprehensive income

(19.58) 3.93

C. Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Particulars For the year ended 

March 31, 2021
For the year ended 

March 31, 2020
Accounting profit before tax 

Applicable Income tax rate 

Computed expected tax expense

Deferred Tax expenses accounted in books 

Effect of expense not allowed for tax purpose 

Effect of expense allow/ed for tax purpose 

Effect of Deductions Claimed for tax purpose 

Effect of Carried Forward Loss 

(Excess) /  Short provision of earlier periods 

Ind AS Adjustments

(5,999.30

25.17%

(1,509.90

(1,438.18

713.62

(527.60

1,325.94

(230.88)

6.22

3,333.54

25.17%

838.99

(541.47)

654.31

(599.77)

(29.23)

(45.48)

72.69

Minimum Alternate Tax - Tax Expense / (Credit Utilised) 
Income tax expense

(1,660.79)
227.32

577.37

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss
(1,605.82) 577.37
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SP 3 û a; a

X01 Of

o
E

E 
- c  - 9

*d
O)

Q.
E

01~o -C

2 c

s iS 00iT TO i-n 
C  C  
TO O

fO 4-
CL 0} 

£ -  
o u 
o;

C  01 •“ ^ <K h>

O U
to TO u
<u >5! ™

C
o

w _> —
c 2 E

5nj — 
■ -  ifl U- 0,
o;

TO•*-' TO u_
O OJi; O) _
TO nj

?  I
TO ■j- Q .
TO (U a

u TO

S  E 'Z
^2 £ TO

TO O ^

S 00to c ^

- 1 ™ ■;7 ra
3X) w) U)

3  "O  

■° ^
i I
c E
0 0  3

o; 00

IQ. <-»

- IO ro
^ Sc = o

73 TO 

TO
U  00 c TO

o

ll 
o Stc o
s -  ̂ p 
■D

_ g  1 5  3
™ 75  CT) p >

tH  ̂ q;
Q £  -o

i r!
 ̂s| .^ E TO OJ O c 00U E TO

<u £  S 
E E

c0)
E

0)
ll

o

TOc

o
T 3

a
O
o>

t? flj



c01
E

O "O
§  s

E
O

(u oO  ̂ 00
-n 5 OS > 00 « i-  ̂
S - 8  
“  t  
- I s
O  QJ S

I I I5 2

■2 -H

£ o

m 75

t;cu

OJ
S

<
oS

OJ
u ^

V £
■B o.

O) a;

?. I
(U

VO E

z  £

0)□O- 00 ra 
O c O =3
™ S
1 < 
c  ^

= sVO t

S njr* _n (N O 
■D
OJ oi
E 9-C 00 < O

-  0  ̂
J5 nj


